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states cal ls sergeant Kathreen Bignott i  of  the uni ted

St ,a tes  Cap i t ,o l  po l i ce .

THE COURT: Very wel l .  Wi l l  we need the

audio/v isual?

MR. MENDELSOHN: No, your Honor, w€ wil_I not.

THE cottRT: very werr-. Then why d.on, t we take

a few minutes to ef  fect ,  i ts  removdl  .  of  f  icer .Jennings,

thank you for your participation. your testimony is

concluded. please don' t  d iseuss your test imony with

anyone

THE WITNESS: Thank you very much.

THE COURT: Thank you

THE WTTNESS: Thank you

, (fnereupon, the witness was excueed.. )

THE conRT: okay. Ladies and gent lemen, please

feel  f ree to ta lk among yourselves whi le we clear th is

away.

THE CLERK: please raise your right hand.

KATHLEEN BIGNOTTT,

having been caI led as a wi t ,ness for and on behal f  of  the

Government, and after having been first duly sworn by

the deputy c lerk,  was examined and test i f ied as fo l lows:

THE COURT: Very we1l  .  p1ease be seated .

THE WITNESS Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.
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DIRECT EXAIvIINATION

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

O Good af ternoon.

A Good af ternoon.

O Would you please introduee yourself to the

Court by stating your fuIl name and spell ing it for the

record?

A Sure. My name is Sergeant Kathleen,

K - a - t - h - I - e - e - n  A n n ,  A - n - n  B i g n o t t i ,

B- i -g -n-o- t - t - i .  I  work  fo r  the  Un i ted  Sta tes  Cap i to l

Pol- ice and I 've been there for  L9 years

O And what are your dut ies,  Sergeant Bignott i ,

wi th the Uni ted States eapi to l  pol ice?

A I'm a sergeant and I am a supervisor.

O What does that mean that yourre a supervisor?

A Bas ica l l y ,  I ,m in  charge o f  a  g roup o f

o f f i cers .  r  work  th ree  to  i - i .  and  r rm respons ib re  fo r

maintaining the secur i ty and safety of  senate of f iee

buildings and grounds and making sure the officers are

at t .heir  assigned locat ions and doing the appropr iate

work that  they are assigned to do.

O You ment ioned three to 11, is that  in the

afternoon and evening?

A  Y e s ,  3 : 0 0  p . m .  t i I I  j - j - .

O f want to direct your attention to May 22nd.,
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2003, were you on duty that day?

A  Y e s ,  s i r ,  I  w a s .

O Where were you on duty?

A The Senate Dirksen building hras my assigned

area as a superwisor.

a Is the Senate Dirksen bui ld ing part  of  the

United States Capi to l  bui ld ings?

A  Y e s ,  s i r ,  i t  i s .

O What t,ime did you eome on duty on May 22nd?

A  A t  3 : 0 0  p . m .

O What happened when you came on duty at 3 :00

p . m .

A I went to my assigned building and f was

notif ied that t,here was a committee hearing in SD 226

which  is  the  Senate  D i rksen 226.

O Who informed you of this?

A Sergeant Sundberg that works the day shift,

7 : 0 0  a . m .  t o  3 : 0 0  p . m .

O Did you receive any other information from

Sergeant Sundberg?

A He just  showed me a picture of  an indiv idual ,

just to monitor the committ,ee room, Eo make sure

everything went orderly that day.

But  f  a lso  have o ther  respons ib i l i t i es  bes ides

the committee room, you know, checking on other
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receptions or what,ever else is going on in that

bu i ld ing .

O After Sergeant Sundberg showed you this

picture, what did you do?

A I responded to the eonmittee room SD-226 , and

also Of f  icer . fennings was there.

O Why did you respond to that committee room?

A weI l ,  beeause as a supervisor,  r  am responsible

for whatever ie going on in the building. And also r

was shown a picture,  just  to monitor Ehe commit tee, make

sure t,hat, there was no disruptions in Ehe committee.

Sure r 1r€s r tnd, am. To make sure that,

the eommit,tee was going smoothry and that there was no

problem

O And what did you do next ?

A And I stood by the door in SD-22G at three

o 'c Iock .  And r  d id  no ,  no te  the  ind iv idua l  tha t  r  was

shown the picture.  I  d id see her in the room.

O Where did you see that individual?

A She was approximately from where I was

standing at  the door wi th of f icer Jennings, she was

approximately abouE 38 feet away from me, sitt ing down,

s i r .

o The individual that you saw in the hearing room

on May 22nd, do you see that individual in this
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courtroom today?

A  Y e s ,  I  d o .

o would you please point Eo that individual- and

identify that individuaL by an article of clothing that

that person is wearing and by where that person is

seated inside this courtroom?

A okay. she is seated r ight  in f ront  of  me here,

a whi te female wear ing the, looks r ike a,  e i ther a navy

blue or a black sweater wi th a royal  b lue shir t .

MR. MENDELSOHN: your Honor, may the record.

ref lect  an in-court  ident i f icat ion of  the defend.ant,

Elena Sassower?

THE COURT: Any objeetion?

MS.  SASSOWER:  No.

THE COURT: Very wel l ,  so noted..

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

o what was going on in the hearing room when you

w e n t  t h e r e  a L  3 : 0 0  p . m . ?

A They were having judicial nominations in that

commit tee room.

O What does that, what does that mean?

A Basical ly in the commit tee room, there,  the

chairman was having test imony from judic ia l  nominat ions

and judges .  Go ahead.

o Do you recall who the chairman was that day?
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A  Y e s ,  I  d o .

A Who was the chairman?

A Senator Chambtiss.

O Do you recal1 how many witnesses t,here were?

A Not, not, an exact number.

O Do you recal l  where those witnesses were

si t t ing inside the room?

A  Y e s ,  f  d o .

MR. MENDELSOHN: your Honor, f 'rn showing the

defendant what 's been marked as Governmentrs Exhibi t  1.

May I approach the wit,ness?

THE COURT: You may.

BY MR. MENDELSOHN: Court fs indulgence.

THE COI]RT: Yes

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

a If  you couLd tel l  the 1adies and

the jury approximately where the witnesses

inside this hearing room.

And this is Governmentrs

been introduced into evidence as

Di rksen Room 226.

A They were, the judic ia l

loca ted  in  th is  a rea  here ,  sea ted

facing the chairman.

gent l -emen of

were seated

Exhibit 1 which has

a photograph of Senate

nominat ions,  they were

this way but facing,

MR . MEIIDELSOHN: your Honor, would. the record
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ref lect that,  the sergeant has identi f ied the witnesses

as sitting towards t,he front of the room in the chairs

that are t,urned in the wrong direction but would have

been facing the front of the room?

THE COITRT: Yes .

BY MR. MENDELSOH\I: .

O Thank you, Sergeant Bignott i .

A Sure

O And how many people were sitt ing in the

audience that day?

A I would say probably about 50 people.

O Did you see where the defendant,  Ms. Sassower,

was si t t ing?-

A Yes, s i r ,  I  d id.  Can f  point  that  out to you?

O  Y e s ,  p l e a s e .

A She was/ she was in the far corner over in this

sect ion over here.  That table was not there at  that

t ime. so she was in the far  seet ion about 38 feet f rom

me and I was by t,he door over here

MR. MENDELSOHN: Your Honor,  I  have a post- i t

wi th a t r iangle on i t  that  I  would l ike to ask the

sergeant to plaee on Governmentfs Exhibit 1 in order to

ident i fy where exact ly the defendant was si t t ing in the

room that. day?

THE COURT: Any objection?

967



L

a
z

1̂

4

5

5

},
I

8

9

L 0

1 1

L 2

- ' - .  1?, \

t 4

1 5

1 5

L 7

L 8

l -9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

MS. SASSOWER: I  rm sorry,  I  d idn '  t  hear.

THE COIIRT: The wit,ness wil l be asked to

ident i fy your locat ion in the room by use of  a post- i t

wi th a t r iangular marking on i t .

MS.  SASSOWER:  P lease.

THE COURT: Very weII ,  r ro object ion.

MR. MENDELSOHN: your Honor, Rdy the record

ref lect  that  the of f ieer,  sergeant Bignott i  has placed

the  pos t - i t ,  i t ' s  a  la rge  pos t - i t .  r  th ink  to  ind . ica te

again i f  the sergeant would,  where that post- i t  is  on

th is  p ic tu re .

TIIE COURT: Very we1l . yes, why d.on, t you teII

us,  Off icer Bignott i ,  what you intend. to indicate.

THE WITNESS : Where you see Officer Jennings,

thatrs r ight  about where she was seated, r ight  in f ront

o f  t h a t .

MR. MEIIDELSOHN: wourd the reeord reflect that

that is towards the back lef t?

,  THE WfTNESS: Towards the back lef t .

BY MR. MENDELSOHN

O Of the hear ing room.

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t

THE COURT: In what posi t ion to Off icer

Jennings in the photograph?

MR. MENDELSOIIN: : To the

968 3 7 5
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THE COttRT: Left ,  lef t  or  r ight?

MR. MENDELSOHN: To the right, of where officer

in looking at ,  the photo,  to the lef t  of  where of f icer

,Jennings is standing.

THE COTRT: Is that  eorrect ,  Off icer Biqnott i ,

Sergeant Bignott i?

THE WfTNESS: I t rs r ight  about r ight  in f ront  of

h i m ,  s i r .

THE COITRT: Very well

THE WITNESS:  Pos i t ion .

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

O Thank you, Sergeant Bignott i .  you test i f ied

that the,  that  the senators wel1,  what was, what was

going on during the hearing?

A Wel_ I ,  i f  the ,  i t  was  once aga in  jud ic ia l

nominations. And when you have a committee room,

everybody is to remain seated and the room was, everyone

was seated. fE was very quiet .

O Was anyone speaking?

A The chairman was speaking.

A And who was the chairman?

A That $ras Senator Chambl iss.

O Was anyone else speaking?

A No,  s i r .  He was,  he  was ques t ion ing  the

jud ic ia l  nominees .
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a Were the judicial nominees speaking?

A WeIl, they were speaking back when they were

addressed by the chairman.

A Was anyone ouUside of the senators and the

nominees speaking when you were in the hearing room that

afternoon?

A  N o t  a t  t h r e e  o ' c I o c k  b u t  a t  3 : 3 0  I  d i d .

O Okay. We'1l  get  to that .  How long were you in

the hearing room?

A I was in there for approximately a half hour.

O And what happened as the half hour moved along?

A WelI .  the chairman was, th ings were about to

wrap up but, but the ehairman was stiI l  speaking at the

t i m e .

O How did you know that things were about to wrap

up?

A Basical ly,  I  was advised by one of  the

individuals on the committee. And f had, f usual_ly

speak to people trying to figure out what. t ime the

commit tee is gonna be over wi th so r  can arso readjust

schedu l ing  fo r  the  o f f i cers .

So Senator Chambliss was about to wrap up the

commit tee but he was st i l l  addressing the commit tee,

when an individual- can I say?

O Cer ta in ly .

970
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A  M s . ,  M s .  S a s s o w e r .

A ,fust teIl the story

A An indiv idual ,  Ms. Sassower,  st ,ood up whi le

everybody else had remained seated and it was quiet.

, But she stood up and sereamed out - Judge

Wesley, look into the corruption of the New York Court

of  Appeals.  Now she used loud language, i t  was very

loud.

a Perhaps you eould demonstrate for us

A Sure

O Try t,o mimic her t,one that, d"y, how, how l-oud

i t  w a s .

A Judge Wesley, look into the eorruption of the

New York Court of Appeals. And she, you know, she

cont inued to say I  want to test i fyr  1rou know.

And the Senate, the chairman twice, you know,

he brought down the gavel to restore order and twice

requested the po, the pol ice to eome in to restore

order

O Can you describe the defendant, s demeanor when

she was standing and as you say shouting?

A She seemed very agitated. She seemed very

upset.  She had the intent to disrupt the commit tee.

O What did you do next

A Basical ly,  once the chairman requested the

971 3'7 B
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Capitol police to come in to restore order, w€ responded

to geL Ms. Sassower,  escort  her f rom that room.

At this point she d.isrupted Congress where she

had the intent.  She st ,ood up, she screamed, she

disrupted t,he eommit.tee. So we eseorted her from that

room.

But she was, even t,rying to get her to l-eave the

room, she did not want to leave the room. She was very

stiffr 1rou know. She was trying to stay there, but

eventually we were able to escort her out of the room.

a When you say we were abLe to escort her out

A Of f icer i lennings and myself .

O Which one of  you was the f i rst  of f icer to

approach the defendant and att,empt to eseort her out of

the room?

A WeII ,  w€ both did i t  s imultaneously.  But

Officer ,,Tennings was first in the room and then I was

behind him. And then leaving, eseorting, leaving the

room r was the first, to leave, to lead and he was he was

fol lowing behind.

O How could you teI I  you test i f ied that  she

was at  f i rst  resist ing leaving the room, can you

descr ibe that a 1i t t le more?

A Wel- I ,  i f  you es normal_ly when you escort

peop le ,  a  lo t  o f  t imes they  w i l l  come a long w i l l - ing Iy .

972 3 7 9
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But she was very rigid and her muscle tone, you

know, standing stiff and not wanting to leave the room

because she wanted to test i fy.  So she was very r ig id,

her body, her muscle tone was very r ig id.

O When you test,if ied that the defendant stood and

shouted, was anyone else in the audience standing at

that  t ime?

A  N o ,  s i r .

O Was anyone else speaking at that t ime?

A The chairman was speaking and she interrupted

h im.

O And after you escorted the defendant out of the

room, what happened?

A She wae yelling am f under arrest, drl f under

arrest .  But pr ior  to leaving once again,  sher |ou know,

she has just ye1Ied out Judge Wesley, you know, she

wanted him to look into the corruption of New york court

of Appeals and also she was yell ing that she want.ed to

t e s t i f y

And when asking, escort ing her out,  she wanted,

twice r bel-ieve she asked, drTr r under arrest, drTr r und.er

you know, screaming in a loud language, you know, am f

under arrest, €trTl I under arrest?

O What ,  i f  any th ing ,  d id  you say?

A Not,  nothing at ,  that  point  unt i l  I  can escort

973 3 8 0
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her out of the room so the committee ean eontinue.

A What happened again, what happened when

of f icer .rennings and you were abl-e to get the def endant,

ouL of Ehe hearing room?

A She was placed under arrest and charged with

disrupt ion of  Congress.

O Who placed the defendant under arrest?

A Of f  icer .Tennings.

O Why is it that Offieer Jennings was the

arrest ing of f icer and not yoursel f?

A I rm a  superv isor ,  i t , s ,  w i t .h  the  Un i ted .  S ta tes

Capitol  pol ice.  I  have numerous of f icers,  over -7O

off ieers to supervise so r  cannot t ie mysel f  up on

arrest paperwork. so we're there Eo supervise. The

off icers are there who take the arrest .

O After May 22nd, 2003, did you ever see the

defendant again before coming to court tod.ay?

A No s i r ,  no t  a f te r  May 22nd.

MR. MENDELSOHN: Thank you, Sergeant

B i g n o t t i .

THE WfTNESS :  yourre welcome.

t"tR. MElqDELsolIN: r have no further questions.

THE COURT: Very we1l . Before we begin with

cross-examinat ion,  th is wi l r  be a good. t ime for us t ,o

t a k e  t h e ,  a  m i d - a f t e r n o o n  r e c e s s .  s o  r e t , s  r e c e s s  f o r

974 5  6 l _
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15 minutes,  resume at 3:20 sharp

Sergeant, be reminded that you, re und.er

oath.  Don' t  d iscuss your test imony with anyone

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE eOItRT : Very wel I . We , re in, we, re in

r e c e s s  u n t i l  3  z 2 O .

(Thereupor ,  the  Cour t ,  recessed a t  3 :05  p .m. )

(Thereupo' ,  the court  reconvened. at  3:20 pM.)

THE couRT: Ms. Bignott i ,  Ms. Bignott i ,  d id you

get the

THE WITNESS: I  got  i t .

THE COURT: Thank you

ITIE CLERK: your Honor, Ms. sassower said she

needs the TV.

Ms. SASSowER: r  th ink we may need this wi tness

too .  she  was d isc ip l i r rJ ' " t  tha t  hear ing ,  tes t i f y ing  as

to what took pIace.

THE CLERK : We, re , we , re actual ly on the

record ,  Ms.  Sassower .

MS.  SASSOWER:  Oh,  yes .

THE CLERK: f was inquiring

Ms- SASSowER: wel l ,  w€ might have i t  to stand

by

THE COIIRT:  Wel l ,  i f  we need i t ,  we can

take  a  b r i e f  recess .  f t  can  be  whee l_ed  i n .2 5

975 382
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MS. SASSOWER: I take it, that on my

direct,  case I wi l l  be able to go through

THE CLERK: Do you want me to call the case?

, TIIE COURT: Very welL, please .

THE CLERK: The matter before the Court at this

t ime for tr ial ,  united states versus Elena sassower,

Case M4l-1-3 -  03 .

THE COURT: Very wel_l . please identify

yourselves for the record

MS. LfU: your Honor,  . fessie Liu for  the Uni ted

S t a t e s .

MR. MEIIDELSOHN: Aaron Mend.elsohn f or the

United States

MS. SASSOWER: Elena Sassower,  er iminal

defendant.

adviser.

MR. GOLDSTONE: Mark Goldstone, at torney

THE COITRT: Very wel l ,  p lease be seated.

r want to address a mat,ter as a preriminary mat,t.er so

that there is no potent iaL for  misunderstanding once we

get underway.

what r would like is a doeument was shown t,o

me ear l ier  in these proceed. ings that appeared on the

face of  i t  to cont.ain a compraint  for  por ice misconduct

tha t  was  f i led  in  ] -9 ,  per ta in ing  to  the  1 ,gg |  a r res t .

3 8 3

2 5
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Before there is even the potential of abuse of

th is document and prejudice to the jury,  r ,d l ike t ,o

know as follows

Assuming that the complaint was fi led, what was

i ts disposi t ion? what,  was the disposi t ion,  what was the

outcome of the

MS. SASSOWER: There was a purported

investigation in which r was taped. That is r received

a phone calI. r was asked if r minded being taped., r

said no. The next th ing r  got  was a dismissar let t ,er

f rom Capitol  pol ice chief  Gary Abrecht.

$IE COITRT: Very well .

MS. SASSOWER: But Sergeant Bignott i  was

presumably knowledgeable of this eompraint, having been

quest ioned as part  of  the invest igat ion process,

according to the ex parte in-camera submission mad.e by

the government

THE CottRT: Right

MS- SASSowER: rn ..Tanuary. rt was recited that,

a certain f  orm was placed in the personner-  for-der.

THE COURT: Right .

MS. SASSOWER: I t  was conceded that she

was one of  the subjects of  that  complaint .

THE couRT: very wel l .  Mr.  Mendersohn, did you

want to make representat ions to me?z 5

977 3 8 4
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MR . MENDEIJSOHN : yes , your Honor , on behal f of

the government.

THE COURT: I '11 hear f rom you.

MR. MENDELSoHN: sergeant eignotti and as werl

as the capitol porice have indicated to us that the

invest igat ion there was no discipr inary act ion ever

taken as  a  resu l t  o f  Ms.  Sassower ,s  compla in t .

THE COITRT: Very well_ .

MS . SASSOWER: Excuse me.

THE conRT: Ask the question. what is it that

you need?

l{S. SASSOWER: Thank you, your Honor. I

THE COIIRT: We don' t need to know about

discovery documents.

MS.  SASSOWER:  I ,  we l1 ,  I  reques ted  in

discovery -

THE COttRT: Listen

MS. SASSOWER: al l  records

THE COURT: oh , - -

MS. SASSOWER: pertaining to the

invest igat ion

THE COURT:  Ms. ,  Ms.  Sassower?

MS. SASSOWER: and disposi t ion of  that

pol iee misconduct complaint ,  and that was never turned

over.

978 3 8 5
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THE COIIRT: Ms . Sass

MS . SASSOWER: Nothing was turned over.

THE COURT: Ms. Sassower,  where is the

marshal? Get him baek up here. f dontt know how many

times I have to tell you, but when I start to talk you

b e  q u i e t .

What I  was about to say is as fo l - lows: To the

extent that we are tal-king about a discovery issue, the

door is closed on that. There is no further production

of documents. That was addressed some time ago.

What we're deal ing wi th current ly is an

evident iary issue and i t  has to do, as I  see i t ,  wi th

t.he balancing.

On the one hand, if Officer Bignotti would have

the ,  a  b ias  based upon a  pr io r  in te rac t ion  w i th  Ms.

sassower,  that  potent iar  b ias wourd be rerevant to th is

case and therefore some expl-oration of the 1996 arrest

and Off icer Bignott i 's  involvement in i t  would be

warranted.

However,  ds the judge presiding, f  have to make

sure that the jury is not prejudieed by th is bias

inquiry.

And what I would require is a proffer as

for lows. Number one, that  a complaint  was f i red.  And

number two, that  a disposi t ion was reached adverse to
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O f f i c e r  B i g n o t t i .

ft is only when those t,wo requirements are met

tha t  f  wou ld  a l low inqu i ry  in to  Of f i cer  B ignot t i ' s

involvement in the t996 arrest for purposes of a bias

inquiry.

The informat ion that I  have received, f i rst

f rom Ms .  Sassower and secondly f rom Mr.  MendeLsohn, is

that a compl-aint  was f i Ied,  dfr  invest igat ion was

undert,aken. It went nowhere. There was no adverse

ac t ion  aga ins t  th is  o f f i cer

Therefore,  my rul ing is as fo l lows. There wi l l

be absolutely no inquiry,  r ro ut terance, no verbiage, ro

guestioning whatsoever with regard to the police

misconduct complaint  that  was f i led in t9g6 by Ms.

sassower against  of f icer Bignott i .  r t  is  i r re levant to

these proceedings

And to Ehe extent that one might make a

colorable argument of relevanee based on bias, it is

more prejudic ia l  than probat ive.  Don' t ,  even ment ion in

open court  the complaint  for  misconduct that  you f i led

i n  1 9 9 6 .

MS. SASSOWER: She was knowLedgeable of  i t ,

Your Honor.

THE COURT:  I  don ' t  care ,  don, t  ment ion  i t .

MS.  SASSOWER:  f t rs  a l ready  been tes t i f ied  to2 5

gg0 387
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that there was a divergence between officer ,Jennings who

t,o1d me t ,o s i t  down and Off icer

THE eOItRT: Ms . -

MS. SASSOWER Bignotti

THE COURT: Ms. Sassower,  - :

Ms. sASsowER who insisted that r be removed..

THE eoIrRT: -- what you fail to understand is

tha t  th is ,  th is

MS . SASSOWER: She arrested me.

THE COURT:  Th is  i sn , t  a  negot ia t ion .

MS.  SASSoWER:  In  facL .

TIIE COIIRT: It, s not a negotiation. I , m

instructing you now that that evidenee is not to be

brought before th is jury

MS. SASSOWER: May I make a statement for the

record?

noted .

THE coltRT: Nor fzou may not. your objection is

MS. SASSOWER: IJh-huh.

MR. GOLDSTONE: your Honor, can we use the

husher for a second?

THE COURT: For what reason?

MR. GOLDSTONE: I  just  want to advise Ms.

Sassower of  one thing.

THE COURT: Very well.
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MS. SASSowER: My lega1 adviser wourd. rike me

to be expl ic i t ,  a l though r  bel ieve r  have said in sum

and substanee the same, that  b ias does noE necessar i ly

have to be the resurt from adverse act,ion, disciplinary

ac t ion .  Is  tha t  i t?

MR. GOLDSTONE: Adverse disposi t ion.

MS. SASSOWER: Adverse disposi t ion

THE couRT: very well. your statement is made

and any object ion that could possibly be made we wi l l

assume has been made, even though not articulated by

you. My stand, f ty holding st i l l  remains.

That even if this miseonduet, complaint, its

invest igat ion and i ts disposi t ion might be rerevanr,

reLevant evidence may be excluded where it is more

pre jud ic ia l  than probat ive .

So on those two grounds, one irrelevance and

two prejudice,  i t  is  excluded from this ease.

MS. SASSOWER: yourre saying i t , ,  s relevant but,

bu t  too  pre jud ic iaL ,  i s  tha t  your  ru l ing?

THE COURT: I  ,m saying i t ,  s i r re levant .  And

to, and to the extent that anyone might disagree with my

analysis on relevance, i t  is  more prejudic iar  than

probat ive.  r  don' t  know how much clearer r  can be with

that .  Mr.  Mendel_sohn.2 5
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MR. MENDELSOHN: Might I  I , I l  just ask for

some c lar i f icat ion.  rs  i t  the cour t 's  ru l ing that  any

evidence of the pol ice misconduct charge is

substantial ly more prejudiciaL than i t  is probative in

th is  case?

THE COURT: Based upon the information that

the, that  I  current ly have, i t  is  absoLutely more

pre jud ic ia l

MS. SASSOWER May I ask

THE COITRT: -- than probative.

MS. SASSOWER: May f ask what information you

are relying on?

TIIE eOftRT: No, you may not. The record is

c lear .  Ms.  Sassower ,  you  fa i l  to  und.ers tand,  and I ,m

gonna say i t  again,  when I  ru le i t  is  f inal .

f f  you want to present me with some author i ty,

1ega1 author i ty to the contrary of  my rul ing for

reconsiderat ion,  you may.

fn th is caser 1rou cannot,  there wi1l  be no

recons idera t ion .  The record  is  made.  Le t ,s  b r ing

sergeant  B ignot t i  in .  very  we l l .  And,  Ms.  sassower , - -

MS. SASSOWER: yes .

THE COURT: - - please remove the box f rom t,hat

cha i r .  o f f i cer  B ignot t i ,  wou ld  you take  a  seat  over

there  p lease?2 5
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MS. SASSOWER: Off ieer who?

THE COURT: I ,  m sorry,  Off icer Deluca.

MS-  sAssowER:  r t ' s  p re jud ic ia l  to  have the

marshal behind me,

THE COURT: Very we11.

MS. SASSOWER your Honor.

THE COURT: He'�s gonna sit right there where the

marshal  sat  yesterd.ay.  we wi l r  maintain order th is

a f te rnoon,  Ms.  saseower .  very  we1 l . :  p rease s tep  up .

THE WfTNESS: May I be seated?

THE COURT: you may.

(Thereupon, the jury returned to the courtroom

a t  3 : 3 0  p . m . )

THE COURT: Thank you, please be seated.

Remember,  sergeant,  that  yourre under oath.

THE WfTNESS:  yes .

THE eOItRT: Very well . Ms . Sassower.

CROSS - EXAMTNATION

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O Sergeant Bignott i ,  a l though you are the

Government 's wi tness, r  arso subpoenaed you, is that  not

cor rec t?

A you subpoenaed me?

O  Y e s .

A Okay.2 5
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a Are you aware that r subpoenaed your presenee

here?

A I  am aware.

A f  submit  Defendant,s Exhibi t  35 for

ident i f i ca t ion .  f tm sor ry ,  32 ,  f  m isspoke.

The subpoena not only requested your presenee

but that you bring with you documents, tangible obj ects

and records relat ing to def endant 's discovery ye€,

demand of Augrust L2th , ZOO3 annexed.

THE COIIRT: Why donr t we see if Sergeant

Bignott i  can ident i fy the document.
'  

MS. SASSOWER: Oh, thank you, your Honor.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O Have you seen this doeutnent before?

A This document?

O  Y e s .

A The subpoena?

O  Y e s .

A r lwe been given a subpoena to attend court .

O Were you asked to bring any documents?

A r  donrt  have any documents.  The only document

we have is the arrest  l -63,  prosecut ion report .

o The arrest and prosecution report. And you

were t.he supervisor that signed. that report?

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .2 5
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a rhat was -- may r --  r  have Defendant,s Exhibit

20, the arrest prosecution report.

THE COURT: WeII,  excuse me, Exhibits 20, 2t

a n d  2 2 ,

MS. SASSOWER: 23 and 24 .

THE conRT: Very welr. why don't you hand them

to the witness so that she can ident i fy them, i f  she

c a n .

MS.  SASSOWER:  Yes .

THE WTTNESS: Okay.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O These were documents prepared under your

superrrision,

A These are arrest,

O cor rec t?

A paperwork,  prose, paperworkr pros€cut j -on.

O Prepared under your supervision?

A f  s igned the paperwork,  that ,s correct .  I

d idn' t  make the arrest .  Of f  icer . fennings

made the arrest .

O According to that paperwork.

A Aceording to this paperwork?

O According to the paperwork.

A  o f f i cer  Jenn ings  is  the  ar res t ing  o f f i cer .

O According to the paperwork.2 5
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A I 'm the supervisor.

THE COURT: Excuse R€, excuse me. euestion, and
you'11 answer whatever luest ion that she poses thaE r

a I low.  okay? LeE 's  no t  ta lk  a t  the  same t ime.  The

eourt ,  reporter can' t  reeord i t .  Do you have a quest ion,

Ms.  Sassower?

MS. SASSOWER: yes .

THE COURT: Ask i t  p lease.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o Do you have any ad.ditionar documents relating

to  th is  mat te r?

THE couRT: sustained.. That was asked and

answered. Next question.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o you stated. that you were shown a picture of me

at  3 :00  p .m.  when you came on du ty ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t ,?

A  T h a t r s  c o r r e e t .

o r  show you document,  Defendant,s Exhibi t  7?

THE couRT:  Le t  the  record  re f lec t  tha t  i t , s

Defendant,s Exhibi t  page t ,wo.

MS. SASSOWER: Thank you, your Honor.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O fs that the document that you viewed?

A rt  100ks l ike the picture t .hat  r  showed of  you,

but r don't know if this is the exact document that he
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showed me. He showed me a picture that resernbred this.

o rs it your testimony that, you were only shown a
pieture and no descr ipt ion?

A r was shown a picture. r was shown a picture

with your name and information.

O Would i t  have been is that  ca1led a

bul let in,  as far  as you know?

A r t  eou ld ,  i t  eou ld  be  ear led  a  bu l le t in .

O Is there some other name, a flyer?

A you coul_d cal l  i t  a f lyer

O What

A fnformation sheet

O And do you reeeive that kind of flyer

buI let in,  informat ion sheet on some sort  of  rout ine

b a s i s ?

A  Y e s ,  I  d o .

O Okay. And who prepares such documents?

A Our intel l igence

O your intel l igence. And i t  comes to your |ou
tes t i f ied  on ly  to  a  p ic tu re  o f  an  ind iv idua l_ .

D id  you v iew,  in  fac t ,  more  than jus t  a  p ic tu re

but al-so a picture and physical  ident i f iers and.

something about the area of concern?

A He showed me a picture of you with your

information' And the area of concern, what do you
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a Such as what, what appears there.

A Okay, f 'm confused. your area of concern t  __

O  W e l l  t  - -

A what are you

O read the bott,om portion

THE COURT:  Wel l  ,  I ,  f  rm sor ry .  Ask  a  spec i f i c

ques t ion .

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o okay. were you when you were shown this or

a related document, what were you told?

A r did not have this information at the bot,tom

o f  i t .

a  W e I l  t  - -

A r just had your information, the picture of you

and your informat ionr |our name, DoB, social  secur i ty,

sex ,  race ,  we igh t ,  he igh t .

O So, did you know where f was going to be? What,

when you were shown my picture and my physical

character ist ics,  my name, for  what purpose were you

shown itz

A r  was advised that there was a person in the

committee room in the senate Dirksen 226 that might

disrupt the session. so to monitor that  commit tee room

along w i th  my o ther  du t ies  and respons ib i r i t ies .

o And did you inquire on what basis there was a
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belief that I might disrupt the session?

A No. r  just ,  r  do my job as a supervlsor.  r
respond to the eommittee room to make sure everything is
in the order ly progress,  in proeess.

o so that' T understand your testimony eorreetly,
yourre not denying that the photo and this whole page
was what was shown to you,

MR. MENDELSOHN: Objeet ion.

THE COURT: The obj ect

MS. SASSOWER is that  correct?

THE cotRT: The object ion is sustained..  she has
ident i f ied what part  of  that  page

MS. SASSOWER: Are you affirmatively _

THE COTIRT: _ _ she became

By MS .  SASSOWER: assert ing

THE COURT: Excuse me. She,s ident i f ied the
part  of  the page that she was shown. she,s ident i f ied
those subject  areas on the page that she knew about.
Next  ques t ion  p lease.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o As a who informed you that r might disrupt
the senate Judiciary committee hearing of May 22nd?

A r  stated ear l ier  r  was shown this informat ion
by Sergeant Sundberg who made me aware of it.

O Did, does Sergeant Sundberg occupy the same

990 3 9 7
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rank as you?

A He,s a sergeant,  t ,hatrs correct

O And you are a sergeant,.

A  y e s ,  I  a m .

O And he works from 7 to three?

A  y e s ,  m a ,  a m .

O And you take over from three to 11.

A  T h a t r s  e o r r e e t .

o so whatever data that would have been avairable

to him from which he could have apprised you that r

might potent ia l ly  d isrupt th is hear ing was al_so

available to you as a sergeant of the same rank.

A  y e s .

O Were you Defendant, s Exhibit 2 may f
approach?

TIIE COURT: you ffiay, yes.

,  BY MS. SASSOWER:

O Did you ever see, receive,  v iew, review the
subject  prof i le that  had been prepared?

' A  
N o .  T h i s  p r o f i l e  h e r e ?

O  Y e s ,  s u b j e c t  p r o f i l e .

A  N o .  r  s t a t e d  e a r l i e r ,  r , v e  s t a t e d  e a r l i e r  t h e
sheet which is Exhibi t

THE COIJRT: Seven, page two.

THE WITNESS: Seven,  page two,  f  received.

991 3 9 8
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your information, the picture and your personar

information and it ended. there, nothing erse. That,s
what f  reviewed. I  on as far  as th is sheet goes

here  r  - -

THE COttRT: That, would be Exhibit

THE WTTNESS: Exhibi t

THE COURT: __ two.

THE WfTNESS: two, f did not review

that

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

o You never reviewed the subject  prof i le.  rsn, t

i t ,  as a matter of  pract ice,  provided to the capi to l

pol ice uni t  when a bul let in pieture is c i rcurated. as

ref lect ing some concern?

THE COURT: Did you understand the question?

THE WfTNESS: Do I ,  do I  review on a dai ly

b a s i s ?

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O As,  as  a  mat te r  o f  p rac t ice ,  po l i cy  and

praet iee ,  when in te l l igence,  spec ia l  assessment  un i t

sec t ion  prepares  a  sub jee t  p ro f i le  and a  bu l le t in ,  does
it transmit both d.ocuments to sergeants so that they can
be appr ised of  what is potent ia l ly  out there?

A You get inter l igence informat ion sheet.
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o okay. Does the intelr igence information sheet

idenLify whether the subject is considered. dangerous?

A !{hen you read inter l igence bul let ins,  you

read every aspect,  of  the intel l igenee bul let in.

O WeIl ,  the subject  prof i le in f ront  of  you

ident i f ies that  r  was not consi-dered to be dangerous.

, 
THE COURT: Sustained

MS. SASSOWER: Were you advised

THE couRT: sustained. she has not read that

document.

Ms. SASSOwER: could she, cour-d she review i t?

Is that  eorrect ,  is  that  eorreet? 
|

THE coIrRT: The objection is sustained. Move

further.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o were you advised in,  in being provided with the

picture and descr ipt ions and the potent ia l  that  r  might

disrupt, that I was not considered. d.angerous?

A r was advised to monitor t,he commit,tee in sD

226. And r  was provided once again the informat ion wi th

your picture and to make sure there was no disruption of

the commit tee hear ing.

A what other background. facts might you have been

provided?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Object ion.
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THE COURT: Sustained.

MS. SASSOWER: Were there any ot,her f acts

you swore to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing

but the truth.

THE COURT: Sustained

BY MS . SASSOWER:

O Were you did you recognize my pict,ure?

A I  recognized your picture.

O Did you recognize my name?

A  Y e s ,  I  d i d .

O Wtry? Wtry?

A rn L99G, you were arrested for disorderry

conduct .

O You were there,  is  thaL correct?

A  T h a t r s  c o r r e c t .

o And from your personal recollection, why was r

arrested?

A Wel l r  lou were arrested because you wenE into a

room tha t ' s  ad jacent  to  sD 226,  wh ich  is  t .he  senate

Dirksen commit tee room, but therers an of f ice next door

to  i t ,  ad jacent  to  i t  wh ich  is  SD 224.

O Excuse me?

A And you

THE COURT: Nor |ou asked the quest ion.

MS .  SASSOWER: Okay.
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THE COURT: She,s gonna answer i t .

THE WfTNESS: And we received. a call for an
unwanted guest which is basicalry somebody who, s in an

of f i ce  room tha t ' s  be ing  d is rup t ive .

so r  responded, al0ng with of f icer phi l l ips and

off ieer Rush, to check on the welfare of  the staf f

members in that  of f ice.

when r  arr ived, Elena, Ms. Elena sassower was

there causing disruption with the staff members in that

of f ice.  And we tr ied to get her to leave the room and

she was being very, she did not want to leave but

eventually we did have her leave.

At that  point  she wasnrt  under arrest .  But onee

we got her into the open publ ic space, the hal lway, she

beeame very disruptive by cursing out 1oud, saying fuck

you, you know, fuck these people.

rn senate of f ice bui ld ings,  we have numerous

people v is i t ing f rom around the uni ted states.  They,re

eonst iEuents ,  they ' re  v is i t ing  the i r  senators  and peop le

are going by.

And she's physical ly going at  one of  my of f ieers

try ing to get a d.r iver 's r icense for informat ion to run

on her.  so she was very disrupt ive and using foul

language in the hallway as people were going by. At

which point
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THE COURT: Very well

THE WfTNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Very weIl.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O So, in other words oh, in other words, I was

not' arrested for having requested to testify at that

day's senate . rudic iary commit tee conf i rmat ion hear ing.

A you were in an office adjaeent to that and you

were in a halrway being distru, disruptive and using

foul, abusive 1anguage while people were going by.

o were you at the senate ,Judiciary committee

hearing on that date?

A on t 'hat  date,  r  came on at  three o 'cIock.  so

at three orclock r  had responded, r  guess i t  was around

3:30  I  responded to  the  o f f i ce  room.

As fa r  as  the  commi t tee  goes ,  r  don ' t  recar r  the

committee but r responded to that personnel offiee room.

O The

MR- MENDELSoHN: your Honor , for the record., s

purposes, we need clar i f icat ion of  what date.

THE couRT: Very wer l .  we need elar i f icat ion

as to your response. Are you talk ing about Lgg6?

THE WITNESS: l_ 996 .

THE COURT: A11 r ighr.

THE WITNESS: The disorder ly eonduct.

996



1

2

3

4

5

6

.7

I

9

t 0

1 1

t 2

l a
I J

l 4

L 5

1 6

1-7

( r-8

1_9

2 0

2 I

a ^
z 3

2 4

THE COURT: Very well.

BY MS . SASSOWER:

o Apart from do you recollect, whether t,he two

other officers had been at, the senate ,Judiciary

Commit,tee hearing on that date?

THE COURT: Excuse me. Which other two

off icers are you speaking of?

BY MS . SASSOWER:

a sergeant Bignott i ,  you test i f ied that  on June

25th,  L996, you and two male of f icers were summoned to

the senate ,Judic iary commit tee of f ices,  is  that  correct?

A  S D  2 2 4 .

O  T h a t f s  t h e  o ,  t h a t , s  t h e  o f f i c e .

A  Of f i ce  ad jo in ing .

O Adjoining the hear ing room.

A Uh-huh.

TIIE eOItRT: yes .

THE WITNESS:  yes ,  s i r .

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o And is i t  your test imony that those of f icers

were not at the senate Judiciary committee hearing on

that date?

A The i r  s ta r t  t ime is  t ,h ree  o ,c lock .  so  a t  tha t

t ime they  commence ear l ie r .  r f  there 's  a  commi t tee

going on ear l ier ,  they would not have been there.  r t
2 5

997 404
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would be a group of  other of f icers.

a When they came on and when you came oD, were

you advised of  an assignment of  por ice of f icers to the

Senat,e .fudiciary Committee room?

A Was f  advised?

o were you advised wel1, were you advised that

there was any incident involving

me

A W e

a at Ehe hearing?

THE couRT: Excuse me. rn order for the record.

to be clear, we need. to know from question to question

whether you, re speaking of the event in j_996

MS .  SASSOWER: Yes, yes .

THE COttRT: Or 2 003 .

MS.  SASSOWER:  Yes .

THE COURT: Which event ?

MS .  SASSOWER: tsg6 .

THE COURT: Very weII .

MS. SASSOWER: Raised by Sergeant Bignott i .

THE WfTNESS: Raised by me?

THE COURT: No, rro,  r ro,  just

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Do you recal l  what the quest ion

2 5 was?

998 405
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THE WITNESS: Okay. You want to know

THE COIIRT: Restate the quest ion please.

BY MS . SASSOWER:

o when you and the other of f icers came on at  3:00

p . m. , was the senate .rudiciary committee hearing stiI l

i n  p rogress?

A  I  d o n ' t  r e c a l I .

O f t  might have st i l I  been in progress

THE COI]RT: Sustained.

BY MS . SASSOWER:

O All right. If but, you do not deny it might

st i l l  have been in progress?

A  I  d o n ' t  r e c a L l .

THE COIIRT: Sustained.

MS .  SASSOWER: Okay, f ine

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O So f  was not arrested in L9g6 in conneet ion

with any conduct, at, the senate .fudiciary committee

hear ing, is Ehat correcL? At the hear ing i t ,sel f  ,  I  was

not arrested for any conduct?

MR. MEIilDELSOHN: Objection, your Honor. It

ca l l s  fo r  specu la t ion

T H E  C O U R T :  N o ,  I ' 1 1  a l l o w  i t .  o f f i c e r

THE WIT\IESS: You weren, t arrested for anything2 5

B i g n o t t i .

999 4 0 6
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in the commit , t ,ee room in SD 226 ,  that ts correct .

MS. SASSOWER: Yes .

BY MS . SASSOWER:

O And you are aware that at that hearing, ?s it

was being eoncluded, r  rose to request to test i fy wi th

ci t izen opposi t ion,  are you not?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Object ion.

TIIE COITRT: Step up.

(Beneh Conferenee)

THE COURT: A11 r ight .  This wi tness has

test i f ied wi th regard t ,o the ] -996 event, ,  ds r  recal I  the

test imony. She responded to 224. you fai led to

es tab l i sh  her  p resence in  226.

Therefore, this questioning about what may have

or might have occurred in 226 al l  requires her to

speculate which I  am not going to al1ow her to do.

r t  may a]-so conceivably require that  she test i fy

as t,o matters that were written or reeorded after the

f a c t .  I ' m  n o t  g o i n g  t o  a 1 l o w  t h a t .

So to the extent t,hat you want to explore

further what happened in 1,996, i t  begins wi th the

response to 224 and it goes forward to your arrest. No

fur ther .

MS. SASSOWER: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Yourre welcome.

1 000 4 0 7
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(Open Court )

THE COURT: please inquire

MS. SASSOWER: yes . Did you subsequently

become aware of certain act,ion taken by me after r was

arrested in the hallway at the senate .rudieiary

Committee on a charge of disorderly

THE COITRT: Sustained, sustained. That has

already been addressed. Sustained..

MS. SASSOWER: Okay.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O So moving back to 2003, May 22nd,. you

recognized my picture and you recognized my name.

A That ts  cor ree t

A When you arrived at the Senate Judiciary

commi t tee  a t  3 :00  p .m.  you re l ieved another  o f f i cer?

A No,  r 'm a  superv isor .  r  donr t  have to  re r ieve

of f ieers .  r rm respons ib re  fo r  o f f i cers  w i th in  tha t ,

committee room.

o But, had you been apprised by the officers that

were then going of f  duty that  there had been no incident

during the hearing when senator clinton was present.?

A W€, normally when we take over, Ry officers

check with the other officer and t,hey advise them of any

probrems in any commit tee rooms of  any indiv iduars.

o And you were not advised of any probr-em for a

1 001 4 0 8
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hear ing  tha t  had commenced a t  2 :00  p .m.  ,  i s  tha t

cor rec t?

A There had been none that day

O And was there any

A at that t ime

o And when you came orr, were you alerted that

Elena sassower was in fact present throughout t,hat two-

hour period, hour period?

A As I  s ta ted  ear l ie r ,  yes .

o You stated how many officers were in the

hearing room at, at the end of that hearing on May 22nd.

and who were they?

A What time are you t,alking about?

O At the end, as it was wrapping up, to use your

words .

A Okay. Wrapping up, can you give R€, do you

have a time frame?

o weII, the hearing wrapped up r believe at about

3 : l - 5 ,  3 : 2 0 , ' 3 2 2 5

A what officers were in the room when you were

0  Y e s .

A taken out?

O  Y e s .

A Of f i cer  Jenn ings  and myse l f .

O Any other of f icer?2 5

1002 4 0 9
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A Not right at that t ime

O Might, there have been another officer?

A f  had Off icer pete Brown respond.

A When did he respond?

A r  don ' t ,  have the  reeo l ree t ion  o f  the  t ime. '

O But was he there in the hearing room?

A officer Jennings and myserf were in the hearing

room

O And where were you standing?

A r was st,anding at the door with officer

,Jennings, about 3g feet away from where you were seated..

o rs i t  the custom of capi to l  por ice to c lump

together when they are assigned dut ies,  to st ick

together and not be in di f ferent areas of  a room, let ,  s

us say?

A Okay. Clump together.

O  w e l l  r  - -

A  M y ,  w e  l r m  a  s e r g e a n t ,  f , m  a

supervisor.  okay. of f icer rJennings was assigned to

t h a t  c o m m i t t e e .  s o  m y  p o s i t i o n  d o e s n ' t ,  i t  d o e s n ' t

matter where f  am posi t ioned

A So in  a  sense t  - -

A r  had of f icer , -Tennings assigned to that

commi t , tee .

o He had the assignment of  that  commit tee, not
2 5

1 003 4L0
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you.

A |m h is  superv isor .  r fm respons ib re  fo r

everything that goes on in that building and on the

Capitol grounds.

o But who wourd make a determination whether or

not to remove me for an incident?

A we l l  ds ,  wer r ,  ds  r  s ta ted  ear l ie r  senator

chambliss, who's the chairman, brought the gavel down

and requested the pol ice to restore order twice.  And

tha t ' s  a  d is rup t ion  o f  Congress .

rn disrupt ion of  congress you make an arrest ,

when you show intent to disrupt the committee.

o rs it your testimony that the gavel was brought

down by senator chambliss in an attempt to restore ord.er

or as part  of  h is stat ing that the hear ing was

adj ourned?

A you disrupted and he hadnrt even adjourned.

You were, you disrupted him. He was st i1 l  ta lk ing

o Are you saying that at the wha., what did

you so you were standing with officer Jerinings at the

door,  is  that  eorrect?

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .
' 

Q And when r began to speak r was seated or

standing?

A When you what?
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a when r began to speak, when r utEered the word.s

you said what were the words I ut,tered?

A Judge Wesley?

O Yes, what were those words?

A you said 'Judge wesrey, look into the corruption

of the New york Court of Appeals.

o r see. r was ad.dressing ,Judge wesley and. not,

the chairman, is that your testimony?

A That 's what you stated

o Did you have a clear vi_ew of me from wherever

you were standing?

A f was standing at the door.

O With Off icer , fennings?

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .

a Did you have a c lear v iew of  me?

A f  could see you.

o was r  s i t t ing or standing when r  ut tered those

words?

A you uttered the words and you stood up and you

yeIled out ,Judge wesley, rook into the corruption of the

New York Court of Appeals. your, in loud language

disrupt ing the commit tee.

o How many times did r utter ,Judge wesley, look

into the corruption of the New york court of Appears?

A How many t imes?
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O  Y e s .

A I recal l  I ,  f rom what f  can recal1, one t ime
you eal led that out.

o And you approached me after r called that out,?

A r approached you when the chairman, who, s in
charge' you interrupted his committee. And the reason
why r went in because the chairman brought the gavel

down and he requested twice for the capitol police to

come in and restore order

o when chairman, presiding chairman chambriss

ca1led for order, twice you said, did. I  say anything

af ter  e i ther  t ime?

A you continued, you wanted to testify and then

you were upset. you kept yelling about am r und.er

arrest, €rrTl r under arrest and we escorted you out of the
room.

a welI ,  why wourd r Ehink r was under arrest?

THE COttRT: Sustained.

MS. SASSoWER: At l  r ighr

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O First,Iy, when I was standing, what were mr/

hands doing?

A I don' t know what your hands were doing.

O Was there anything in my hands?

A As r  stated, r  donft  know what you were doing
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with your hands.

a Did there come a time when you saw anything in

my hands?

A you used, from what r saw, used. loud language

and disrupted the eommittee. Nobody else was standing

or yelr ing, just you. The room was guiet,  was sirent

and you interrupted the chairman.

o was r reading from any d.ocument, ?s you recalr-?

A At1 r reealr is that you were yelling and you

disrupted the committee.

O When, where was the video camera?

A That was from behind, behind where you were

seated

o r show you Government Exhibit 2, where, can you

identify where the camera was? I

A r t 's  somewhere in  th is  sect ion back here.

O Yes.  And

MR. MENDELSOHN: your Honor, for reeord

purposes.

THE COIIRT: Yes .

MR. MEIIDELSoHN: can the r".ori refrect that

the sergeant has pointed to t.he back middle of that,

photo by the back doors of Government, s Exhibit 2?

THE COURT: So noted.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

1007
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o And is it not your testimony tha! you were

standing wiEh sergeant .Tennings immediat,ely werr, to
the side of t,he video camera that wourd be closer to t,he

door right over here?

A We were by, we were by the d.oor.

O you were all the way at the door.

A we were by at the d.oor where officer Jennings

w a g .

o But you knew that the disruption, if there were

to be a , quote , disrupt ion, would be coming f rom me and

f was over here, somewhere over here?

A you were in the back

o r was in the back. And you truly said that

th is,  the s ide tabLe there was not there?

A r  don' t  bel ieve the sid.e table was there

o  T h a t r s  r i g h t .  M y  r e c o l l e c t i o n  r r m  s o r r y ,

r  r m  s o r r y .  I

THE COURT: Next quest ion please.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O As a veteran sergeant,  you had

con, you had been to many eongressional

tha t  cor rec t?

A Uh-huh.

been to many
i
hear ings ,  i s

THE COURT: yes .

THE WITNESS:  yes .

1 008
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BY MS. SASSOWER:

o And that, includes t,he senate ,Judiciary

Commit tee conf i rmat ion hear ings, correct?

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e e t .

O And the standard, t,he standard of these

hear ings, at  the beginning the room is pret ty much ful l ,

is  that  correct t  
,

A rt depends, it depends what the hearing is on

or what t,he committee is on. 
i

o Right. But the senalors who are the sponsors

of the judicial nominees are there at t,he beginning of

the eommit tee hear i rg,  but  as a general  pract ice,  they

don ' t  s tay .  They ,  they  reave a f te r  some recess .

A r don I t know what they d.o, ma r am, what their

schedu le  i s .  f ,m no t  the i r  schedu ler .

o when you arrived, what senators were present?

A r  don' t  reeal l  what senators were present a!

the  t ime.  i

O Senator Clinton was not, there?

A r  d idn ' t  say  tha t .  . r  sa id .  r  don ' t  recar r  what

senators were there at  the t ime. 
I

a okay. you said. you came over with officer

.Tennings. what was said to me when the two of you came

over to me?

A What did we say to you?2 5

1 009 41,6
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O What did you say to me? What was I told?

A we took you out of the room. we escorted you

out of the room.

a Did you exprain why r had to de escorted ouL of
the room, I had to leave the room? 

|
A w€, we escorEed you out of the room and we

explained to you that you d.isrupted. the committee.

o rs it your t,estimony that officer .rennings tord

me to leave the room?

A We escorted you from the room,

a Who did the leading?

A r was in front of officer ,Jennings and ,Jennings

was behind me, you.

o who did the talking and the insisting that r

must leave the room?

A Both of  us escorLed you from the room.

o But who, who told me that r must leave the

committee room?

, A of f icer Jennings and mysel f  escort ,ed you from

the room and we advised you you had to 1eave.

o  That ' � s  no t  my ques t ion .  cou ld l th "  cour t  adv ise

the witness to answer the quest ion that r  asked. who

told me, who command.ed me to leave the room?

THE COURT: Do you recal l_ the speci f ic?

THE wr rNESS:  r  donr t  reca l l  spec i f i car r_y  what

ma t  am.

2 5

1 0 1 0
I

477



L

z

4

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

1 1

L 2

l -

I J

L 4

l_5

1 6

l 7

l_8

l_9

2 0

2 L

z z

2 3

' 2 4

2 5

101 1 4]-8

we to ld  her .

THE COURT: Very weII.  Next guestion.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

O you test i f ied that my muscles

tone. you were holding me?

room.

a Phys iea l ly .

A And you didn,t  eome wil l ingly.

O physically you were

you?

had this r igid

A That is true. We were escorting you from the

A We were escorting you from the room.

O But  I  wasnr t  pu l l ing  back ,  was  f  ?

A You were rigid. you didn, t. come

A f  was  r ig id .

A You did not come wi l1 ing1y.

A You d idn , t  charge me w i th  res is t ing  ar res t ,  d id

A You were charged on that date ,fitn disruption
of  congress .  I

I
o weII, after r was taken from the room t.hen what

happened, who said what? 
I

A officer ,Jennings placed Oor, .rrrJ., arrest and
then you were transported.

. O What

A to our headquarters and processed at that



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

7 2

t 3

l 4

L 5

1 6

L 7

1 B

1_9

2 0

2 L

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

"coRREcrED PAGE', i

l oca t ion .

O What words were said?

A What  words were sa id to  you?

O  R i s h t .  
i

A Like r  said,  of f icer Jennings praced you under

a r r e s t .

o Are you a,  were you aware that of f icer Jennings

had never himserf  been the in i t iat inq of f icer in an

ar res t?

A you're saying that he had never made an arrest ,?

o He had never himser- f  been the in i t iat ing

Of f i cer  in  an  ar res t?

MR . MENDELSOIIN : Ob j ect ion, ydur Honor .

THE couRT: sustained. possible rerewanee.

THE WTTNESS: Why would he

THE COURT: Excuse me.

THE WITNESS : Go ahead.

THE COURT: Next quest, ion.

MS-  SASSOWER:  r sn ' t  i t  t r ue  tha t  you  a r res ted

me?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Object ion,  your  Honor .

THE COURT: Susta ined.

T H E  W I T N E S S :  A s  f  s t a t e d r  _ _ .

THE COURT: No.

THE WfTNESS : Okay.

1012 4 1 9
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THE COURT: I t ,s okay. Onee I sustain i t ,  you

don't  have to answer the quest, ion. Next quest, ion.

MS. SASSOWER: What is the basis?

THE COURT: Ask

MS. SASSOWER What, is the basis?

THE COttRT: Ask your next, quest,ion.

BY MS . SASSOWER:

a Wha! did I say upon being taken out? Was f

ta lk ing?

A I  don ' t  reca l1 what  you sa id

a Did r say something about t,he precedent of

L996, what happened in ]-996 when r had r isen to request

to  tes t i f y?

A I don't  recal l  what you stated

o Might r have said that r was not arrest,ed at

that t ime simply for requesting to test i fy?

THE COIIRT: Sustained. Ca1ls for

specu la t ion .  Nex t  ques t ion  p lease.

MS. SASSOWER: Did I  say ca l_ l  Detect j -ve

Zimmerman?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Objeet ion.

THE COURT: Susta ined.

MS. SASSOWER: Did I  say f  had sent  a

THE COURT: Sustained.2 5
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MS. SASSOWER page fax?

THE COttRT: Sustained. Next line of

questioning.

MS . SASSOWER : okay. you staEed t,hat as r was ,
to use your words, escorted out,  r  carled out am r under
arrest .  Why would I  th ink I  was under a*est?

THE COURT: Sustained.

MS . SASSOWER: - -Do you know why I might have

ca11ed that out?

THE COURT: Sus

MS. SASSOWER Did r idenri

TIIE COURT: Sustained

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o Did r ever say to you that it is the presiding

chairman who deeides whether or not, r should be arrested

for  reguest ing to test i fy?

A  f  d o n ' t  r e e a 1 I .

o Did you ever did there "o."1" t ime when r
was standing in the hallway with my hand.s handcuffed?

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined.  eues t ion  p lease.

BY MS. SASSOWER: 
I

a Did,  d id presiding chairman saxby chambl iss

exi t  the back of  the senate .Tudic iary commit tee within

moments,  a minute,  two minutes af ter  we were ousted?

when 'm ins ide  the  room r  can, t  see  what 's

I

2 5

1014 42a



t

2

3

4

rJ

6

7

I

9

1 0

1 1

L 2

n a
I 5

L 4

1 5

1 6

1,7

1_8

1,9

2 0

2 L

^ ^z z

2 3

) 4

I

going on inside the room I

o we were in the hallway. Did he exit from the

baek of the eommittee room and go past us in the

hallway? Do you recall?

A i lm focusing on you; r 'm not focusing on him.

T h a t r s  n o t  m y  p r i o r i t y .

o  'D id  r  speak  w i th  h im as  he  passed? D id  T ,  d id

r say to him are you direeting me to be arrested, d.o you

wish me t,o be arrested? j

A  I  donr t  reca l - I  what  you s ta ted .

o when r, when r according to you, r screamed

that,  that  r  wanted to test i fy,  what words did r  say

that r wd, when r wanted to tes -- did r use some word.s?

MR . MENDELSOIIN : Ob j ect ion , your Honor .

THE COURT: Sustained.

MS. SASSOWER: Was i t  a quest ion,  may I

tes t i fy?

THE COITRT: Sustained.

MS . SASSOWER: May f be permitted?

THE COURT: Next l ine of  quest ioning.

MS.  SASSOWER:  yes ,  y€s ,  yes  .

THE COURT: Or we proceed with red.ireet .

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

d
O You supervise^ the prosecut ion,  the arrest

report ,  the prosecut ion documents?2 5
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A r review,^ it and put my signature on it, that' s

correct  

l
O And you needed a complainant, right?

THE COURT: Sustained. Don,t  dD, you don,L

have to answer that question.

Ms. SASSowER: who is the complainant on the

arrest  report t  
i

THE coIrRT: r just sustained a'n" objection to

th is  l ine  o f  ques t ion ing .  p lease,  p leabe s i t  down.

MS. SASSOWER Who is the complainant?

THE COIJRT: Mis,  Mr.  Mendelsohn, please si t

down. Ms. Sassower,  next  l ine of  quest ioning

MS . SASSOWER: Okay, very good. i lust one

moment, . y'es .

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

o rt  was you, sergeant Bignott i ,  who supervised

the arrest aeeording to you?

A Once again,  that  ls  correct .

o A1r r ight .  That 's according to the paperwork,

you supervised the arrest?
I

A What  a re  you ge t t ing  a t?  I ,m Jonfused.

O WeI1 ,  I  Sergeant  B ignot t i ,  Wasn, t  i t  you  and

only you who arrested me?

A once again,  r  am a supervisor.  The of f icers

make the arrest. f have other duties and2 5
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responsibi l i t ies and cannot be t ied up.

A But this arrest you made?

It[R . IvIENDELSOHN : Ob j ect ion .

THE COURT: Sustained. f t ,  s already been

t e s t i f i e d  t o .  N e x t  i s s u e .

MS - SASSOWER: you had another role here. you

made the determinat ion to da, to deny me ci tat ion

release so that r  had to be held over in ja i l  overnight,

is that  correct?

MR . MENDELSOIIN: Obj ection.

THE COURT: Sustained. Irrel_evant .

MS. SASSOWER: Irrefevant?

THE COURT: Now is a good timef t"ai"" and
gentlemen of the jury, for us to take our final break

for the day. Ms . Ramos needs a breaks . so we are going

to  b reak  un t i l  3 :30  
i
I

Be back promptly. And the, t{e examination of
of f icer Bignott i  wi l l  conclude by the t ime that we leave
f o r  t h e  d a y .  I , m  s o r r y ,  f  m e a n t ,  4 : 3 0 .  y e s .  f

apo log ize .

(Thereupon the jury returned to '  the juryroom.)

THE COURT:  Very  we1 l .  you , re  rs t i ' l  
under

oath .  Don ' t  d iscuss  your  tes t imony w i th  anyone.

THE WfTNESS : Thank you.

THE COIIRT: Very well.
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THE CLERK: The court wirr stand in brief

recess unt i l  return to Court  at  4:30.

(Thereupot ,  the  Cour t  recessed a t  4 :  l_5  p .m. )

(thereupon, 'he court reconveJua "t 4 :25 p . m. )
THE couRT: For purposes of scheduring at this

j unc ture ,  a re  you abre ,  Ms.  L iu ,  Mr .  Mende lsohn,  to  te I I

me how mueh in the way of redirect you might have?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Less than twJ minutes .

THE COURT: Very wel1.

MR. MENDELSOHN: shourd we have the sergeant

take the stand before they come in? 
i

THE COURT: Mr.  Deluea, let ,s br ing in the

wit,ness so she, II be here when they "o*L in.

(Thereupon, the witness resumed the stand. The

jury returned to the courtroom.)

fHE COURT: Very wel_l . please be seated.

Remember, Of f  icer Bignott i ,  you, re und.er oath.

THE WTTNESS:  Yes .

THE COURT: Thank you.  Ms.  Sassower,  p lease

inquire.

BY MS. SASSOWER:

o okay. you have been r have only a few more

quest ions.  you have been with the force by the way,

how many years did you say you have been with the force?

A I  came on in  l_98G,  October .2 5
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"coRREcrED 
PAGE!'

O Wi th  Cap i to l  po l i ce?

A  T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .

o And have been a sergeant for how many years?

A September ,  s ince  September  f  g lg : .

I

o And how many arrests have you'made over your

career in capi to l -  pol ice whether as an of f icer or a

sergeant?

A 'd have to go back and pulr  my paperwork.  As

a sergeant ,  as  r  s ta ted  severa l  t imes,  the  o f f i cers  a re

to take t .he arrests.  The sergeants have to remain

ava i lab le  fo r  respond ing .  
I

o wel l ,  they d.o paperwork and "J" credi ted wi th

the arrest  on paper.

A The sergeants are not,  do not do the paperwork.

We sign the paperwork,  we review the paperwork.

o so your test imony under oath is that  i t  was not

you who arrested me?

MR.  MENDELSOHN:  Ob jec t i on .

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined .

BY MS.  SASSOWER:

O How many ar res ts  okay .  Of , 'b " t r . " r ,  the

arrests that  you have personal ly made and the arrests

that you have supervised, have you ever made or

supervised an arrest .  where the indiv id.ual  had simply

requested at  a publ ic congressional  t r""J i r rg to be

1 0 1 9 4 2 6
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Do we

l a s t

permi t ted to  test i fy?

A officers, my officers have made numerous

arrests in committees of people disrupting congress.

a No, not disrupting, fl inging open a banner or

demand.ing to be heard but requesting respectfully at an
appropr iate point .

MR. MENDELSOHN: Object ion,  your Honor.

TI{E COURT: Overruled. I , I1 al low i t .

MS. sAssowER: Are you aware Jt another case

where a respectful request made at the concrugion

MR. MENDELSOHN: Object ion.  The wi,  the

defendant is test i fy ing.

THE COURT: Sustained.

MS. SASSOWER: you, I  don,L bel ieve you did.

have a capacity for the reporter to read back the

guest ion which was not objected to?

THE COURT: Ms. Ramos?

(Thereupon, the last  quest ion

THE COIJRT: Very weIl.

BY MS . SASSOWER:

O  L e t , s  j u s t  o k a y .  W e ,

knowledgeable?

A Knowl_ edgeabl e ?

THE COURT: Of what?

BY MS. SASSOWER:

read back. )

when you become

I
Iwas

I

I
d id

1020 4 2 7
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That

test i fy  a t  the

not  ar rested.

in l-996 when I respectful ly

Senate,Judiciary Committee

requested to

hearing, I was

THE COITRT: Sustained.

MS. SASSOWER: When did

THE COURT: Sustained.

t h i s  c a s e .

MS. SASSOWER:

you Learn of that

I t t s  no t  re levant

Did I tel1 you when you were

f a c t ?

t,o

arrest ing me that in ] .996 r had not u"el,  arrested for

reques t ing  to  tes t i f y?

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined.  I t ' s  i r re levant .

Ms. SASSowER: r t  was our conversat ion a!  the

t ime of the arrest,  was i t  not Sergeant 'Bignott i?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Object ion.

THE WITNESS: At the t ime of  what arrest?

M S .

supervisor of

and asked him

compla int?

what '  s

entered

SASSOWER:  A l l  r igh t ,  Ias t  ques t ion .  As  the

the arrest ,  who cal led Senator Chambl iss

if he would be a eomplainjnt on the

THE COURT: Sustained. Redirect?

MR. MEIIDELSOHN: your Honor, very briefly.

THE COURT: yes . 
l

MR. MENDELSOHN: I , m showing the d.ef endant

been marked as Government 's Exhibi t  r - ,  previously

into evidence. May f  approach the witness, your

1A21 4 2 8
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Honor?

THE COURT: you may.

REDIREET EXAIVITNATTON

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

o sergeant Bignot,t i, r 'm showing you Government, s

Exhibi t  L.  previously,  you put a rather rarge ye11ow

post- i t  on there,  and r  wond.er i f  instead of  the post- i t ,

you could plaee this red dot, at the "po't where the

defendant was sitting in the hearing room on May 22nd,,

2 0 0 3 .

A Sure .  (Wi tness  compl ies .  )

Is that good for you?

o could you describe where you've plaeed the red

dot on Government's Exhibit i- for the ra, the jury?

A r t 's  the rast  row r ight  in  f ront  o f  o f f icer

.rennings. Right directly in f ront of where of f icer

.fennings is, r ight.  I

O Standing direcrly in rhe back L-

A Di rect ly  in  f ront ,  r ight ,  in  the back

MR. MENDELSOHN::  Thank you, Sergeant Bignott i .

f  have nothing further.

THE COURT:  Very  we l1 .  Of f i cer  B ignot t i ,

Sergeant  B ignot t i ,  f  apo log ize .

O of  the room.

A --  of  t ,hat  chair .

2 5
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THE WITNESS: That, s okay 
j

THE COURT: Thank you very much for your

t,estimony. you, re excused 
I

THE WfTNESS: Thank you, s i r .

THE COURT: Very well . 
I

(Thereupon, the wi tness was excused..)

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, r believe

that werve reaehed the point  today where i t ,s s impry

more convenient to recess for the day than to begin with

another  w i tness .  Le t rs  beg in  tomor row a t  g :45  sharp .

Thank you.

It[R. MEITDELSOHN: your Honor, may we, may we say

one thing

THE COURT: yes.

MR. MENDELSOHN: before we recess for the

day?

ahead.

MS. LfU: your Honor,  dt  th is t ime the United

S t a t e s  r e s t s  i t s  c a s e - i n - c h i e f .

THE eouRT: very wer-l. And what that means,

ladies and gent lemen, ds a pract ical  matter,  is  that  r

THE COURT: Yes .

MR. MENDELSOHN: Thank you, your Honor.

MS.  L fU:  your  Honor ,  d t  th is

THE COURT: Very welI. ,Just a minute. Go

2 5
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p . m .  )

l

wil l  entertain preriminary matters in the morning and

t,hen we wilr go forward from there. so including, if

warranted, the defense case. A11 r ight? very werl ,

thank you. I

(Thereupon the jury was excused at 4 :3G

I

B e  s e a t e d .  M r .

you approach please?
l

I
I

THE COURT: First  th ing in the morning, r  wi l l

entertain the mot ion for judgment of  acqui t ta l .  And you

should diseuss with Ms. sassower what t ,he requis i te of

such a  mot ion  is .

obviousry,  you've been there before.  r t  need

not be anything that is long and expansive but it needs

to be made for the record ,

MR- GOLDSTONE: An oral motion! your Honor?

THE COttRT: yes.  yes,  def in i te ly an oral

mot ion,  br ief  and to the point .  And t14>icar1y,  counsel

wi l l  submit  on the reeord,

forward.

I r L l  r u 1 e  a n d  t h e n  w e , l _ l _  g o

MR. GOLDSTONE: Thank you.

MS. SASSOWER: Thank you, your Honor.

TIIE COURT : Very wel l

(Open Court )

THE eOItRT: Very welI.

Goldstone and Ms. Sassotver,  would

(Bench Conference)
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THE COURT: Very we1l. f ,ve excused t,he jury

for the day. I,m happy to say I don,t have dny, any
notes ,  8o  tha t ts  good.  we 've  asked them to  be  back  a t

9 : 4 5 .  I  p l a n  t o  s t a r t  s h a r p  a t  9 : 4 5 .  I

T h e  r e s t ,  o f  u s ,  l e t , s  b e  h e r e l a t  9 : 4 0  s o  t h a t  r

can handre any preliminary matters and begin promptly at

9:45 '  Al l  r ight ,  anything further? Very wer-r  .  see you

tomorrow.

THE CLERK: your Honor, f have to give Ms.

THE COURT: Sassower not ice.

THE CLERK:  -_  Sassower  her  no t ice .  Ms.

sassower, your triar is continued to tomorrow morning.

rf you fail to appear, a warrant wourd issue for your

arrest .  I f  you,re convicted of  fa i l ing to appearr  1zou
face a  L80 days  in  ja i l ,  a  thousand do l la r  f ine  or  bo th .

rn addi t ion,  your t r ia l  has begun. r f  you fai l

Eo return, the court eourd eonsider that you waive your

r ight,  to be present.

absence .

The trial could etntinue in your

Ms. SASSowER: r  certainly would not want that .

THE COURT: Very wel l .

THE CLERK: The court stands in reeess

until return of court tomorrow morning.

(Thereupotr ,  the proceedings concruded at .  4:40
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